
 
Patrick McLoughlin will appear before the Commons transport committee to answer questions about the failed west 

coast franchise. Photograph: David Cheskin/PA 

The transport secretary, Patrick McLoughlin, will be grilled by MPs this week about the 

west coast rail franchise, armed with a report into the fiasco from Centrica boss Sam 

Laidlaw. 

Laidlaw, a non-executive director at the Department for Transport (DfT), has submitted 

an interim study of the failed process to McLoughlin, who has already suspended three 

DfT officials after discovering "significant flaws" in the decision to award the deal to 

FirstGroup ahead of incumbent Virgin Rail. 

Following the discovery of errors in how the bids were evaluated, McLoughlin tore up 

the contract and retained Virgin as the operator of the London-Glasgow route on a 

short-term basis. 

McLoughlin will appear at the House of Commons transport committee on Wednesday 

to face questions over the process, which has cost taxpayers at least £40m in 

compensation to the four shortlisted bidders for the contract. 

Early indications are that the model used to forecast economic growth and revenue was 

producing incorrect figures – a mistake not picked up by a department that had lost 

large numbers of key staff. Laidlaw's investigation was assisted by a team of external 

accountants. 

But McLoughlin himself may face questions about his own actions during the crisis he 

inherited after the cabinet reshuffle in September, including why he assured the 

transport select committee last month he had full confidence that Virgin's legal 

challenge to the decision to award the contract to FirstGroup would fail. 

The previous transport secretary, Justine Greening, had already demanded a full 

investigation of the process once officials in her department had admitted to errors that 

could affect the outcome. 

McLoughlin may also have to defend his actions in announcing the suspension of three 

civil servants at the same time as cancelling the franchise competition at the beginning 
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of this month. Amid accusations that officials were being made scapegoats, one of the 

three, Kate Mingay, put out a statement through lawyers insisting her role and 

responsibilities had been inaccurately portrayed by DfT briefings. 

A DfT spokesman said: "We expect the initial findings of Sam Laidlaw's inquiry to be 

published before the end of the month." 

McLoughlin also faces questions over another controversial DfT procurement as the 

committee seeks assurances that the failure of the west coast contract will not delay 

closure of the £1.4bn Thameslink contract any further. 

Thameslink is taking longer to sign off than expected and is not expected to be finalised 

until the new year, which has prompted calls from unions and MPs for the process to be 

started again or for the contract to be handed to the Bombardier factory in Derby. 

Siemens, the German industrial group, was selected ahead of Bombardier last year as 

preferred bidder for the contract. 

Steve Scrimshaw, head of Siemens's UK train division, confirmed the contract would not 

be signed in the autumn as hoped. He said: "We are disappointed that it has taken 

longer than we anticipated. But we still remain confident that we will get there." He 

added: "Depending on progress over the next month or so, we hope to achieve 

commercial close by Christmas with financial closure in the new year. The negotiations 

are ongoing". 

Until the DfT was forced to scrap the award of the west coast contract to FirstGroup, the 

deal to build 1,200 Thameslink carriages had been the department's biggest 

procurement headache, after Siemens was selected ahead of Britain's last remaining 

train factory as preferred bidder. Bombardier has since cut at least 1,000 jobs at Derby 

and made clear that the hopes of the remaining 1,600 workers are pinned on a £1bn 

contract for trains on Crossrail in London. Siemens and Bombardier are two of the four 

shortlisted bidders for Crossrail, who must submit their offers by Monday's deadline. 

One industry source expressed concern that the Crossrail process, due to close in 2014, 

could be delayed because the DfT, banks and one of the shortlisted bidders are still 

trying to wade through the Thameslink arrangement. 

In a letter to McLoughlin this month, the transport committee chair, Louise Ellman said 

she would also like to know if the west coast cancellation would cause problems for 

signing off the Thameslink deal. She asked the minister: "What are the reasons for the 

delay in completing the Thamelink rolling stock procurement and when do you expect 

this to be concluded?" 
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I don't know why they bother because we know the outcome. 

Dave will pat him on the head, and promote him... 

ohsocynical 

28 October 2012 5:05PM 

Early indications are that the model used to forecast 

economic growth and revenue was producing 

incorrect figures – a mistake not picked up by a 

department that had lost large numbers of 

key staff.  

Slash and burn approach to public sector proves 

counterproductive. Who'd have thought it. 

CordwainerJones 

28 October 2012 5:14PM 

First class shambles by a third class government. 

Shunting Greening off to another department so Dave wouldn't 

have to sack her. He thinks we wouldn't notice which makes it all 

the more despicable. 

I know, let's blame the previous administration and especially 

Gordon Brown. (Just to preempt the Central Office trolls). 

vikingbones 

28 October 2012 5:19PM 

West coast rail fiasco: transport secretary faces grilling 

from MPs 

I've had a chat with Jamie Oliver and grilling is really not enough 

in this situation. 

Maybe a little roasting, turning over and boiling, or perhaps 

hanging, drawing and quartering would work a lot better.. 

kjee 

28 October 2012 5:22PM 

We should be discussing the re-nationalisation of the whole rail 

system so that we can stop paying for shareholder dividends and 

boardroom excesses and put the money in to improved services. 

Run a private rail system and this sort of fuck-up is inevitable. 

blairsnemesis 
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Louise Ellman chairs the Transport Select Committee?? Nice to 

see she takes an interest in something other than her favourite 
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Sign in or create 
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topic... I get the impression that cameron likes to keep incompetent 

ministers close at hand and still in the cabinet in order to hide 

his own competence or lack of. 

Response to blairsnemesis, 28 October 2012 5:22PM  

We should be discussing the re-nationalisation of the 

whole rail system so that we can stop paying for 

shareholder dividends and boardroom excesses and 

put the money in to improved services. Run a private 

rail system and this sort of fuck-up is inevitable. 

The old British Rail was on a hiding to nothing. It was starved of 

investment and subject to short term political decisions. So when 

it failed to give a good enough service it played into the hands of 

the Tory privatisation freaks. And what a success has that been... 

NOT. 

We should renationalise the railways and manage them in an 

arms length manner. It will result in lower fares because we will 

not be adding to the private wealth of the likes of Branson. 

Response to HappyValley, 28 October 2012 5:40PM  

Yes, just think of the millions of tax payers money that has 

helped the bearded twat live on his caribbean island. 

UK rail fares are scandalously high, solely due to privatisation. 

So after years and years of the vast majority of people saying that 

the railways should be renationalised, the government blows at 

least 40 million of OUR money crassly messing up another rail 

privatisation deal. You couldn't make it up. 

He will just lie and lie and lie . Hmmm. Remember McLoughlin is Secretary of State for 

transport, not Minister of State for Transport. Suggest you 

Google for his background,  

then look at that of Theresa Villiers (Minister of Transport up to 

September...i.e. whilst the cockup was happening and then 

Google "scapegoat" and "whipping boy". 

Not that I'm any fan of P McL mind you. 

E. 

Actually *I* just read a bit more about Theresa Villiers... 

"The Daily Telegraph reported on 11 May 2009 that Theresa 

Villiers bought a £345,000 property in Kennington. In 2007-08 

she claimed a total of £18,181 in parliamentary allowances for 

this second London home. 

She also has a house in Arkley in her north London constituency 

of Chipping Barnet. The house, a semi-detached property that 

she bought for £296,500 in May 2004, is an 8 minute drive away 

from High Barnet tube station, from which commuters can reach 

Westminster in about 45 minutes." 

Laugh? I nearly left the country. 

E. 

Why grill him? He is the one who found out about the cock up! 

Why not grill his predecessor? 

The scapegoating has begun. They are grilling the wrong person. 

Theresa Villiers should be getting the grilling in a court of law, 

and then asked to pay every single penny of taxpayers money 

back that has been wasted on this fiasco.  

Anyone caught cheating the taxpayer through the benefits 

system would be sent to gaol and or fined. How about some 

acceptance of responsibility and accountability from Ministers? 

This comment was removed by a moderator because it didn't 

abide by our community standards. Replies may also be deleted. 

For more detail see our FAQs. 

This is a prime example of the way elites have acted to suffocate 

the interests of taxpayers and commuters. First Group didn't go 

to court because they were acutely aware that DOR ownership of 

the West Coast Line could lead to a realisation that for-profit 

operators aren't needed.  

I simple cannot understand why Labour don't make 

renationalisation (not run by the DfT, but rather an external 

organisation like Network Rail) an election issue. It is hugely 

popular and would save the government millions in the long-run. 

People bemoan British Rail, but BR had far, far lower subsidies 

and operated in an entirely different era. A modern BR would be 

run along the lines of TfL, rather than some of the unproductive 

state industries that existed in the 60s and 70s. 

McLoughlin will appear at the House of Commons 

transport committee on Wednesday to face questions 

over the process, which has cost taxpayers at least 

£40m in compensation to the four shortlisted bidders 

for the contract. 

Well I think we can expect the inevitable attempt, probably 

originating from Steve Baker, transport committee member, to 

link the WCML franchise debacle with HS2 - ever since this 

franchise award fiasco erupted the Chiltern based anti-brigades 

(Baker represents High Wycombe constituency so he has an 

interest here) have been desperately trying to whip up public 

hysteria to support their case by implying that the DfT must have 

similarly cocked up their calculations for HS2, so let's just cancel 

it (HS2) right now before we have a repeat performance. You can 

see some of Cheryl Gillan's recent effort's here, here and here 

This ruse conveniently omits to mention that; 

a) HS2 Ltd, an arms length quango, is responsible for HS2, NOT 

the DfT officials discredited by the WCML affair.  

& 

b) HS2 is NOT a franchise, it's a new rail line project so anti-

campaigners are comparing chalk with cheese, as this article 

from a commentator who actually boasts intimate knowledge of 

the rail industry, points out in a rational manner. 

But what the heck, why let something as inconvenient as facts get 

in the way of good old fashioned scaremongering? 

Response to ohsocynical, 28 October 2012 5:05PM  

I don't know why they bother because we know the 

outcome. Dave will pat him on the head, and promote 

him... 

Unless there is serious wrongdoing uncovered, in which case a 

ministerial advisor will have to fall on his sword first and then 

Dave will pat him on the head, and promote him. 

Response to adair458, 28 October 2012 7:35PM  

Mr Shapps, this was not within your ministerial purview. Please 

go away. 

Re-Nationalise!  

Our rail system is the maddest on earth!  

The pricing structure has long ceased to represent the miles 

travelled irrespective of when you travel.  

Re-Nationalise! 

Response to NTEightySix, 28 October 2012 5:23PM  

What is this to do with the topic in hand? Typical diversionary 

tactic. 

Response to HappyValley, 28 October 2012 5:40PM  

We should renationalise the railways and manage 

them in an arms length manner. 

With Network Rail as the blueprint so the bastards in charge of it 

can declare a profit - whence the profit in a massively loss-

making national rail infrastructure - and award themselves 

massive bonuses on the strength of that. 

And in 10 years time we will be complaining about the 

privatisation of the NHS. When will we learn?  

Sadly, we won't. I read somewhere that for the last 40-odd years 

no party had won an election without Murdoch's backing! What 

does that say about our democracy? Of course, we open ourselves 

to such abuse by the government and colluding private 

companies. During my 46 years, privatisation has not produced 

any positive result. 

The Civil Servants made a complete mess of the tender 

evaluation model . The Permanent Under Secretary has let his 

political masters down and needs to provide the MP's with some 

answers as to why , bearing in mind that so much was at stake , 

the model was not properly tested . These Civil Servants are all 

highly paid with bonuses and with gold plated pensions so must 

be held to account . Those who have been drawing their salaries 

under false pretences need getting rid of . 

This is the same department responsible for the Derby Trains 

fiasco- £1Bn contract going to Germany and a thousand workers 

lose their jobs . But in this case the idle and indolent Labour 

MP's for Derby were equally to blame for failing to watch over 

the Civil Servants and ensure the work came to Derby . 

We used to have British Rail workshops, didn't we? Didn't they 

build trains? 

This is an almighty cock-up, and if this has happened in the 

transport department , then it's very likely that it has happened 

in the NHS and other departments. Civil servants need to stop 

winging, and endeavoring to pass the buck, they oversaw this 

mess, and so they have to be accountable. They want the pay and 

pension benefits but don't want to, or can't ,accept responsibility. 

Tough it goes with the territory. 

The contracts for train carriages needs to be awarded to Derby 

not Germany.  

As for this totally incompetent shambles of a supposed 

government, they need to understand that they are the idiots 

who caused this problem, all heads need to roll. They are 

despicable and useless idiots, who have, and continue to cause 

the problems. 

Response to blackfirscharlie, 28 October 2012 8:11PM  

Maybe, but she was mentioned in the article and it is a bit 

surprising given that she obsesses over a certain country more 

than anyone in Parliament. 

Response to RogerN, 28 October 2012 8:38PM  

And how do you know this before the results of the inquiries are 

known? 

Response to Hottentot, 28 October 2012 9:00PM  

Singing from the same hymn sheet as RogerN it seems. So how 

do you know the Civil Servants were to blame entirely? 

Now remember folks, privatisation of our public utilities was to 

promote competition and drive costs down and save us all money 

Hands up anybody who still believes it? 

Response to Hottentot, 28 October 2012 9:00PM  

This is an almighty cock-up, and if this has happened 

in the transport department , then it's very likely that 

it has happened in the NHS and other departments. 

Civil servants need to stop winging, and endeavoring 

to pass the buck, they oversaw this mess, and so they 

have to be accountable.  

It probably has happened in other Departments. It what happens 

if you get a Government who simultaneously makes things more 

complicated and gets rid of staff with knowledge and expertise. 

Its the Government who is overseeing mess after mess after 

mess........ 

And the only thing for the current system is that they can be 

made accountable at the next election. 

The killer punch for McLoughlin would be if the same errors 

exist in the HS2 analysis of the economic benefit of taking 20 

mins off the journey time to Birmingham at a cost of £32 Bn. If 

they do, there is no case for HS2 and it should not be built. 

It's also clear that an incoming Labour government could expect 

broad public support to simply allow the franchises to lapse and 

gradually return the railways to public ownership, as happened 

with the East Coast mainline. 

Given the cost of bidding for franchises and the risk factors 

involved, if Labour were to announce this as their policy now, it 

would kill the tories entire rail strategy stone dead because the 

train operating compoanies wouldn't be willing to bear the cost 

of being in the game at all if there is a good chance they will be 

out on their ear after the next election. 

The killer punch for McLoughlin would be if the same 

errors exist in the HS2 analysis of the economic 

benefit of taking 20 mins off the journey time to 

Birmingham a 

 

Personally I hope that this government don't start on HS2, 

because they will fuck it up. But in principle there's a lot to be 

said for it. The point is that the line to Birmingham is at capacity 

anyway with demand still growing. So we need to build another 

line anyway; the question is, do we build a standard line or a 

high speed line? If we build a high speed line it can carry more 

people per day as well as making the journey shorter; against 

that, it's more expensive per mile than standard. However, as I 

understand it, high speed rail lines are often actually cheaper per 

passenger carried per year, because the capacity is higher - with 

the trains running faster, you can get more people through the 

system. At any rate, it's not simply about paying £32 Bn to knock 

20 mins off the journey time, it's about the best way to add the 

necessary cpacity to one of the core lines in the rail network. 

Response to Hireton, 28 October 2012 9:12PM  

If the civil Servants were/are not to blame for failing to validate 

the (as it transpires) defective model then who was and why 

didn't the civil servants have the competence and gumption to 

put in place commissioning tests to prove the model when they 

had the chance. We will have to wait for the report, you are 

correct, but I'm sure I hear the sloshing of a limewater mix for 

the white wash. 

Not all Civil Servants are inept tossers - many/most are 

massively competent, diligent, hard working and should be 

applauded for the very difficult job they do in testing 

circumstances - but in the case of transport this is the 

department that either by accident or design allowed the rail 

privatisation (under Major!!) to go forward in possibly the most 

damaging form, failed to adequately supervise track 

maintenance regimes and brought us HS2. Not, I hope you will 

agree, the CV of a competent department so I am not at all 

surprised they appear to have cocked this bid evaluation process 

up. 

Response to richardbunning, 28 October 2012 9:23PM  

@richardbunning: "The killer punch for McLoughlin 

would be if the same errors exist in the HS2 analysis 

of the economic benefit of taking 20 mins off the 

journey time to Birmingham at a cost of £32 Bn. If 

they do, there is no case for HS2 and it should not be 

built." 

Perhaps, except that you are talking utter bunkem - hardly a new 

strategy for anti-HS2 campaigners - care to explain to readers 

here how precisely HS2 is directly comparable with the WCML 

franchise award process; we're all ears? 

Until you have some hard evidence, better to keep quiet rather 

than confirm informed reader's suspicions about your real 

motives? 

Re-nationalise! 

Every essential utility! 

Response to nocausetoaddopt, 28 October 2012 10:56PM  

Why do you think re-nationalise would help? These problems 

occurred because of public sector workers (civil servants) trying 

to do this small exercise. Why do you think they would be any 

more competent at running a whole rail system, this is the lesson 

we learnt back in 70/80's - civil servants and governments don't 

run businesses well. 

These problems occurred because of public sector 

workers (civil servants) trying to do this small 

exercise. Why do you think they would be any more 

competent at running a whole rail system, 

Actually, the problems are a direct result of the new franchising 

formula that this new government put into place upon coming 

into office. It's also widely acknowledged that spending cuts have 

hollowed out much of the expertise from the DfT. Very few 

people would argue for direct government control of the 

railways; the industry should instead be left to run itself by 

experts in the field through an arms length body. 

The Civil servants in the DfT are trailors, giving railway contracts 

to the Germans and to the Japs while our lads and lasses rot on 

the dole in Newcastle, Swindon, Crewe, York, Darlington and 

Glasgow. No fit for purpose sack them all, hire outsiders put 

National Interest at the top of the bidding document and all 

trains to be built in Britain with engines, drive trains and 

electrical kit all sourced in Britain or a full 100% offset deal, 

otherwise the same rules as in France and Germany, ask why rail 

lines are made in France when they could be made in the UK, as 

for the Germans its buy anywhere but from the UK. 

Heres a link to an interview with the new Chief Whip Sir George 

Young when he was in charge of the privatisation 

 

a snippet 

YOUNG: I believe - No, no. There are real  

benefits to passengers in this policy. That is why we 

are doing it. I believe  

that when the next Election comes, whenever it 

comes, people will say: Yes,  

actually, they were right. The private sector is making 

a better fist of  

running the railways than British Rail used to. And, 

those who say we want to  

wind the clock back, we want to give it back to British 

Rail, we want to give  

them more subsidies, because we're reducing the 

amount of subsidy that is  

needed, that will be seen as a vote loser for our 

opponents. So, I'm confident  

that this is the right thing to do in political terms, but 

also in Transport  

terms.  

 

HUMPHRYS: Can I suggest to you another way in  

which the taxpayer is being ripped off here? And, that 

is that that money -  

the income, the profit which should have gone back to 

the taxpayer last year -  

is, instead, going to be used to pay a socking great 

dividend to those people  

who bought shares in the sale. That money shouldn't 

have gone to them. It  

should-  

Response to 24thfloor, 28 October 2012 11:24PM  

The Civil servants in the DfT are trailors, giving 

railway contracts to the Germans and to the Japs 

while our lads and lasses rot on the dole in Newcastle, 

Swindon, Crewe, York, Darlington and Glasgow. 

Maybe people like John Prescott ,Frank Dobson. Stephen Byers, 

Philip Hammond, Justine Greening etc.  

may want reflect on that as civil servant only implement 

minsterial policy 

Response to richardbunning, 28 October 2012 9:23PM  

the cost of london to birmingham is £17 billion and time savings 

are 35 minutes not 20 which is nearly 40% faster then now. £32 

billion includes the legs to manchester and leeds. 

i agree that the franchise system needs to be replaced or 

substantially amended. whether this includes what we know as 

nationalisation from br days can be debated but the taxpayers 

need to have control of the railways via the government.  

i was surprised that new labour did not do what you say back 

when privatisation was being implemented and say that the 

railway would be taken back into public hands and that 

shareholders would only be given back what they had paid. this 

could have stopped it in its tracks (sorry !). maybe to do with the 

party trying to lose its historical roots..... 

Response to lxy001, 28 October 2012 11:14PM  

rail is a natural monopoly that is also very important for the 

economy so is better suited to being under public control if not 

ownership. 

by the 1990's BR was the most efficient railway in europe ie was 

the least subsidised. inter city was also in fact making money. 

had br had the levels of money thrown into the railway since 

privatisation our railways would be better and certainly cheaper. 

however privatisations have always been political rather then 

rational or economic decisions made in the interest of the 

country as one might forlornly hope. the closures in the 1960's 

werent always rational either but labour closed more lines then 

did dr beeching ! they let him do the dirty work and take the 

flak ! less political interference in the railways would be welcome 

but then someone has to try to control what is currently a huge 

sum of subsidy each year and high ticket prices 
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